
 

The following minutes were approved on December 8th, 2008 by: 
 
 
___________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Signature of Chairman                                           Signature of Clerk 
 
The Work Session of the Lincoln School Board was held on December 
2nd, 2008  in the School gym at 7:30 pm 
 
Those present were: 
 
  Trustees                        Administration 
      Kl-Ken Lumpkin-Chairman         Superintendent – Kathy Heisler 
     Bf-Bill Frisbee-vice chairman            Principal –Laurie Maughan 
      Bc-Bill Cyr                Clerk – Carol Williams 
     Bw- Bob Wood    
     Kt-Kathy Tams  
 
Audience:  listed on attached sheet 
 
Chairman, Ken Lumpkin, started the work session at 7:35pm. 
 
He explained the purpose of a work session.  He informed the public 
that no action would be taken at this meeting. The only purpose for the 
meeting was to share information and get input from the community.  
Then he turned the meeting over to Kathy Heisler. 
 
Kathy presented a power point on the 4 day school week, introducing 
the idea and sharing possible strengths and weaknesses of this 
schedule.  The power point also went over the results so far of a 
survey taken on the 4 day week.  The survey is not complete as some 
parents wanted more information before making their decision.   A copy 
of the power point is attached.   
 
Kathy then turned the meeting over to Jim Baldwin, superintendent of 
Alberton Schools.  Alberton just this year went to a four day week. 
They have been running this schedule for about 4 months. 
 
Jim shared that it is very important to make sure you have a good survey 
of the community on the issue, getting as much input as possible.  Public 
support would be a key factor.  It is imperative that the community is 
supportive of the schedule change. 
 
Jim said the schedule alberton is using has a concentrated curriculum 
four days a week with no study halls.  The last 20 minutes of a class 
period, the teacher helps kids with their work and answers questions. 
 
One issue that Jim shared was Alberton did not revise the master 
contract as far as teacher leave days.  With less school days the 
teachers and school board came to an agreement that each day used 
for leave would count as 1.2 days.  He said the master agreement 
should be looked at on this issue before the 4 day work week is 
implemented. 



 

 
Jim shared that morale is up for both staff and students.  Attendance 
has improved, and honor roll students has gone from 58% of the 
student population last year, to 67% this year. 
 
The meeting then moved into a question and answer period. 
 
Staff member, Steve Maughan asked how the students had reacted to 
the change. 
 
Jim answered that the students had reacted positively.   When first 
implemented, there was concern about the younger elementary 
students.  He shared that the younger kids had adjusted to the new 
schedule and seem to have as much energy as ever.  Kindergarten does 
have a nap time to help them get through the long day.  They also 
schedule fine arts and music the last period of the day, having all the 
core classes in the morning. 
 
Heidi Handford asked about other schools who had been running this 
schedule for a while and if we had any statistics from the other 
schools.   
 
Kathy Heisler informed the public that we had a copy of a power point 
from Victor who has been using the 4 day week schedule for 3 years.  
Any member of the public wanting a copy of this  would just need to 
stop by the office and request one. 
 
Jim shared that Victor after one year of 4 day schedule experienced 
crime going down 50%, Test scores went up and their attendance also 
improved.  He then talked about Colorado schools.  Some schools in 
Colorado have been running the 4 day week for 14 years.  He said these 
schools swear by the four day week. 
 
Laura Nicolai then asked about how long class periods would be with 
this new schedule.   
 
Kathy Heisler  responded the classes would most likely be close to an 
hour in length, but this was a point for discussion on whether we 
would have an eight or seven period day.   
 
Heidi Handford had concerns about athletics and eligibility.  would 
athletes academics suffer because of the long day?  Athletes have very 
little free time as it is, would this longer schedule affect them 
negatively? 
 
Jim answered that they had experience no problems with athletes and 
academics.  Alberton school offers study tables in the morning and 
afternoon with teachers to help kids that are having problems. 
 
Staff member, Kris Jacobsen, then asked how much of class is study 
hall in Alberton.  
 



 

Jim answered that they try to give 20 minutes a day to teacher assisted 
study hall in each class.  This can vary each day, but this is what they 
are shooting for. 
 
Jim also shared that a few weeks into the new schedule they met with 
parents and community members to share problems and concerns.  One 
concern parents had was the junior high kids weren’t getting enough 
time to do their work and had too much homework.  He said meetings like 
this are important to work out any problems and concerns.  He also 
suggested that our school do a survey every year as to what could be 
improved, with the new schedule. 
 
Heidi Handford asked jim would alberton would go back to a 5 day 
week if things didn’t work out. 
 
Jim answered alberton is committed to the four day week and that in 
talking to a lot of other schools that had been on a 4 day week for a 
while, all of them said they wouldn’t go back, except for a few schools 
in Canada. 
 
Staff member, Annette Gardner, asked Kathy Heisler if games would 
always be on Thursday or Friday. 
 
Kathy answered that junior high sports, cross country meets and jv 
football, couldn’t fit into that schedule, but all other sports we 
would try very hard to only schedule on Thursday, Friday or Saturday. 
 
Staff member, Kris Jacobsen had a concern about high school athletes 
missing Thursday afternoons. 
 
Jim answered that they scheduled most their hs games on Friday and 
Saturday and try to have home games on Thursday night.  He said Victor 
does the same thing.  JH games are played at 5 pm so the kids miss less 
school.  He continued that our conference is very helpful with 
scheduling.  Alberton’s athletic scheduling has definitely cut down on 
missed days due to sporting events. 
 
Another question was asked about the trend with other schools.  Who 
else is considering a four day week? 
 
Jim answered that Arlee looks like they will be going to a four day 
week, and Noxon is going to some four day weeks. 
 
Staff member, Annette Gardner asked if the four day week was set with 
Friday as the day off, or could it be a Monday or maybe even vary the 
day of the week that is taken off. 
 
Jim answered that Two Eagle takes Monday off.  Kathy informed the 
group that we are just looking for information.  The reason for this 
meeting is to get input.  Friday is not set as the day that would be taken 
off, if we were to go to a four day schedule. 
 



 

Heidi Handford then asked Jim what was the most compelling argument 
against the 4 day week. 
 
Jim answered the number one concern from parents was daycare on 
Fridays.  He shared that when Victor School went to a 4 day week a 
church offered daycare on Friday.  Within a couple of weeks, no one 
was using it as parents had made other plans.  He also shared that 
possibly it could be a good opportunity for the older kids to be able to 
baby sit on Fridays. 
 
Heidi Handford brought up that for a few kids school is the only 
structure they have.  Some kids home life is not structured and would 
it be a problem for these kids to not have the school environment on 
Fridays.  She also brought up the issue of drug problems and what 
would kids do with the extra day off. 
 
Jim acknowledged these were valid concerns and shared with the 
group that one Friday a month, Alberton takes kids on field trips to do 
something fun.  
 
Coach, Casey Burns, asked Jim if it was true that the savings that 
Victor is getting has been used to broaden technology. 
 
Jim answered this was one of their goals. 
 
Jim then shared with the group that with the four day week, teachers 
had most Fridays off.  Teachers come in 30-45 minutes earlier and leave 
15-30 minutes later than the old schedule.  They are required to come 
in one Friday a month.  Administrators work most Fridays.   
 
Annette Gardner then asked about the impact of this schedule on 
hourly employees like janitors, cooks and aids. 
 
Jim informed the group that at Alberton the hourly employees moved to 
9 hour days so they work 36 hours per week, they also received a raise.  
So their annual salary basically stayed the same after the change. 
 
Annette asked about hourly employees and would they lose their 
benefits? 
 
Jim answered that any employee working over 20 hours received 
benefits. 
 
Carl templeton made a comment that the extra 20 minute timeframe set 
up for teacher assisted study hall was a good idea.  He thought there 
would be less goofing off than in normal study halls. 
 
Staff member, Kris Jacobsen, asked about class meetings and how 
Alberton handles them in the new schedule. 
 
Jim said they have one class meeting per month and vary what class 
period the meeting takes place so as to not negatively impact any one 
particular class. 



 

 
Kim Castagne asked if homework increased with the longer days. 
 
Jim said at alberton they shoot for 1 hour of homework a night.  
Teachers are 100% behind the new schedule and the teacher assisted 
study hall has really cut down on homework. 
 
Heidi asked about sports practices and if they were shortened with the 
longer days. 
 
Jim answered that sports practices are cut off at two hours.  
Alberton’s junior high basketball practices take place during their pe 
classes. 
 
Michele Kegel asked about field trips and the interruptions with a four 
day week. 
 
Jim said they are being very careful with fieldtrips, trying to minimize 
interruptions. 
 
Jim also shared that with the new schedule he has noticed one 
weakness is the morning seems to go fast, sometimes the afternoons 
can seem long.  They have Elementary classes solids in the morning to 
catch the kids while they are still fresh. 
 
Laura Burns asked when kids miss a day with a four day week it seems 
like a lot more time missed.  Would kids be coming to school sick in 
order not to miss a day?  She also stated that some doctors and 
dentists aren’t open on Friday. 
 
Jim acknowledged that as a valid concern.  He said sometimes with four 
or five day week, kids come that are sick and you have to send them 
home.  A lot of his kids plan their doctor appointments in the afternoon 
to miss the least amount of time. 
 
Heidi Handford asked if attendance was more of a problem with this 
new schedule.  
 
Jim said they moved their attendance policy from allowing 10 days 
missed per semester to 8 days missed and it hasn’t been a problem. 
 
Laura asked if students that missed a day could come in and make up 
work on Fridays. 
 
Jim shared that at alberton the board wanted to stay away from having 
school on Fridays. 
 
Laura also shared that she would like to see kids have opportunities to 
do things on Fridays. 
 
Jim said alberton had gotten an after school grant which helped pay 
for the extra fieldtrips and such. 
 



 

Louann Gardner asked if the savings would really be that high since we 
heat our school with propane. 
 
Jim shared they had installed smart thermostats on the heaters and 
lights that save electricity.  A discussion then took place about how 
we heat our school and the equipment we have. 
 
Terri Mooney asked what is the main objective of switching from a 5 day 
week to a four day week. 
 
Jim answered even if you don’t save a dime, he believes a concentrated 4 
day week is better than a partial 5 day effort. 
 
Terri Mooney had concerns on what kids would do on Friday.   
 
After this, there were no more questions.  Chairman Lumpkin thanked 
Jim Baldwin for coming up and answering questions.  The chairman then 
reminded the group that this was a process.  The board had no 
preconceived ideas on this subject.  The board needs public input to 
guide them in this decision.  The boards’ number one concern is what is 
best for the student.   
 
Heidi asked the board to help make sure the community knows what is 
going on.  Possibly have a message board for questions and answers.  
She said it would be nice if we used technology to keep the community 
involved. 
 
Michele Kegel said she was one of the parents that couldn’t answer 
the survey because she needed more information.  She asked that we 
send another informational letter out to parents to keep them 
informed. 
 
Annette Gardner asked that the board visit Victor school and 
interview kids and staff about their feelings on the schedule change.  
She recommended that the media communications class tape some of 
these interviews. 
 
Chairman Lumpkin thanked everyone for coming and sharing their 
concerns and questions.  He said there will be more work sessions to 
discuss this issue further.  Then the meeting came to an end. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:51pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 


	Signature of Chairman                                           Signature of Clerk

